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1        JUDGE JONES:  We will go ahead and get

2 started on the record.

3        Good morning.  I call docket number

4 13-0446.  This is entitled Enbridge Pipeline

5 (Illinois), LLC, Petitioner.  Pursuant to Section

6 8-509 of the Public Utilities Act, Petition to take

7 private property as provided by the Law of Eminent

8 Domain.

9        At this time we will take the respective

10 appearances orally from the parties.  In doing so,

11 please indicate your business address and business

12 phone number.  We will start with the appearance or

13 appearances to be entered on behalf of the

14 Petitioner, Enbridge Pipeline (Illinois) LLC.

15        MR. REED:  Good morning, your Honor.  G.

16 Darryl Reed and Dale E. Thomas of the Law Firm of

17 Sidley Austin, LLP, 1 South Dearborn, Chicago,

18 60603, 312-853-7000 appearing on behalf of the

19 Petitioner, Enbridge Pipeline (Illinois) and also

20 Ms. Amy Back.

21        MS. BACK:  Amy Back, in-house counsel with

22 Enbridge Pipeline (Illinois) LLC, 26 East Superior
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1 Street, Suit 309.  The phone number is

2 218-464-5704.

3        JUDGE JONES:  I'm not sure we got a

4 complete address.

5        MS. BACK:  Oh, no, you did not.  Duluth,

6 Minnesota -- thank you -- 55802.

7        JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.  Next we will take

8 appearances on behalf of those who have filed

9 intervening petitions so far.

10        Are there any appearances to be entered on

11 behalf of those who have filed intervening

12 petitions?

13        DR. PLIURA:  This is Tom Pliura,

14 P-L-I-U-R-A.  The law firm address is PO Box 130,

15 210 East Center Street, LeRoy, Illinois.  That's

16 L-E capital R-O-Y, Illinois, 61752.  My office

17 phone is 309-83 -- sorry, 309-962-2299.

18        JUDGE JONES:  Thank you, sir.  Are there

19 any other appearances to be entered this morning?

20        MR. OLIVERO:  Staff.  Thank you.  All

21 right.  Appearing on behalf of the staff witnesses

22 of the Illinois Commerce Commission, John Feeley,
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1 and his business address 160 North LaSalle Street,

2 Suite C-800, Chicago, Illinois, 60601, and James

3 Olivero.  My business address is 527 East Capitol

4 Avenue, Springfield, Illinois, 62701, and our

5 respective phone numbers are, for Mr. Feeley, area

6 code 312-793-8824, and my business phone number is

7 area code 217-785-3808.

8        JUDGE JONES:  All right.  Thank you.

9        Are there any other appearances to be

10 entered this morning?

11        Let the record show there are none, at

12 least at this time.

13        Just let me mention up front so I don't

14 forget, for anyone who is participating by

15 telephone from somewhere other than Springfield,

16 please identify yourselves before speaking if you

17 are speaking on the record so that our court

18 reporter can attribute your comments to you.

19        I think the appropriate next step in the

20 process would be to provide an opportunity to the

21 parties to discuss scheduling among themselves to

22 see if some agreement in that regard can be
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1 reached.  I assume that has not happened at this

2 time.

3        Let me make sure, is there any agreement

4 among parties at this point in the process

5 regarding scheduling?

6        MR. REED:  Prior to scheduling, your Honor,

7 there is an open question that I believe needs to

8 be placed on the record as to the intervention of

9 Dr. Pliura and the clients that he represents.  We

10 have not been given the courtesy of a petition that

11 has been filed at this juncture.  We do not know

12 whether, in fact, there are any clients of

13 Mr. Pliura who are impacted by the petition that's

14 currently before you and the Commission.  We would

15 only ask that that be put on the record so that, in

16 fact, we are not litigating that which has already

17 been decided.

18        I am not trying to delay the process, but

19 in the interest of fairness we believe it is only

20 appropriate that we know the ground rules of those

21 individuals who are going, excuse me, going to

22 participate in this proceeding, and we would ask
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1 that Mr. Pliura do so.  If not now at least in

2 writing so that, once again, we know the landscape

3 that we're going down before we start talking about

4 scheduling.

5        JUDGE JONES:  Dr. Pliura, do you want to

6 speak to that?

7        DR. PLIURA:  Yes, your Honor.  I apologize.

8 I can hear you very well.  I cannot hear the

9 speaker before you very well.  I don't know if it

10 is the speaker phone, but I know that there was

11 some kind of objection or uncertainty about my

12 involvement, and that's all that I could take from

13 that.

14        Could you repeat what his objection or

15 comment is?

16        MR. REED:  No, my apologies, Dr. Pliura.

17 The microphone was not on when I was speaking.

18 The comment that I made was in the interest of

19 fairness, we would ask that you identify the

20 individuals that you represent that are impacted by

21 the pleading that has been filed in this

22 proceeding.  We do not know whether or not there
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1 are representatives or, excuse me, landowners that

2 you represent that have or will be impacted by the

3 petition that's currently before the Honorable

4 Mr. Jones and the Commission, and in the interest

5 of fairness we would simply ask that you identify

6 those individuals or at least let us know who they

7 are so that we're not relitigating that which the

8 Commission has already decided.

9        DR. PLIURA:  Okay.  I can comment to that.

10 One of the problems or the issues from the petition

11 is, is that it is not at all clear the pathway of

12 the proposal or the petition for eminent domain.

13        For example, we have not seen the actual

14 pathway that is being proposed, so we don't know

15 which actual landowners are going to be or

16 potentially affected.  We know at one point we had

17 over 250 intervenors in the 07-446 case.  We have

18 been contacted by many landowners, and the short

19 story is even in very small areas we don't know

20 which actual landowners are going to be directly

21 affected or indirectly affected because no specific

22 route has been outlined.  If there is a map, if
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1 there is something finite that says they have

2 chosen this pathway, we will certainly be able to

3 respond with that and give you the names of the

4 directly impacted and indirectly impacted

5 intervenors.

6        MR. REED:  With all due respect, your

7 Honor, the Commission has entered an order that

8 granted the Petitioner a Certificate of Convenience

9 and Public Necessity.  In that order the Commission

10 has identified the route that, in fact, it had

11 approved.

12        What we are here for now today is to seek

13 eminent domain on that which the Commission has

14 already approved.  We do not want to go down the

15 path of relitigating that which has already been

16 relitigated.

17        To the extent there are some discrepancies

18 that Dr. Pliura has identified, the proper course

19 for that would have been to file an application for

20 rehearing and subsequently to file an appeal.  That

21 was not done, and we don't believe, in fact, now is

22 the time to relitigate that.  I will not burden the
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1 record with anymore arguments.  Suffice it to say,

2 what I just heard Dr. Pliura say is something that

3 has already passed.

4        DR. PLIURA:  Well, just a follow-up, short

5 comment.  Under the eminent domain statute, the

6 Petitioner originally in 07-446 was required to

7 file a defined pathway.  To my knowledge that was

8 never done.  That was supposed to have been done

9 within six months after the Petition for

10 Certification was granted.

11        In addition, it is our intention to argue

12 in this case that that 07-446 application has

13 expired and is now void simply because they have

14 not acted on it within a reasonable time frame.

15 But I don't think this is the purpose for this

16 argument at this point, but we are just setting

17 forth our arguments.

18        But the bottom line, happy, very happy to

19 set forth the individuals who may be directly or

20 indirectly affected when we know what the route is.

21        MR. REED:  It is my understanding of the

22 Public Utilities Act that 8-406 has a provision in
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1 there that requires a two-year time limitation.

2 That is not in Article 15 of the Public Utilities

3 Act.  Therefore, if Dr. Pliura wants to litigate

4 that and argue that, we can certainly do so.

5        The Commission has already made a ruling

6 with respect to the route that was approved. This

7 petition is only for eminent domain, and what I

8 would like to do is to the extent Dr. Pliura has

9 some legal arguments he would like to make, we'd be

10 glad to respond to them.  For purposes of this

11 hearing today we'd like to set a schedule and see

12 what direction we are going, if that pleases your

13 Honor.

14        JUDGE JONES:  So you're suggesting what in

15 that regard?

16        MR. REED:  To the extent that Dr. Pliura

17 has legal arguments that he would like to raise, we

18 would like to see those in writing, and I will just

19 leave it at that.  But for purposes of today we'd

20 like to try to set a schedule.

21        JUDGE JONES:  Let me back up a minute here.

22 Was that petition for leave to intervene, was that
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1 served on others, Dr. Pliura?

2        DR. PLIURA:  Yes, I believe.  It did only

3 go out two days ago.  I was on a ten-day vacation,

4 so I apologize.  But yeah, it was served

5 electronically and, you know, posted on the web

6 site as well, but I think we mailed it from my

7 office two days ago.

8        MR. REED:  To the best of my knowledge,

9 your Honor, we have not received it nor is it on

10 the Commission's web site, the petition for

11 intervention.

12        JUDGE JONES:  I think it is -- at this

13 point I think it is on the Commission's web site,

14 not from two days ago, but I think it is on as of

15 yesterday at some point in time, August 21.

16        Staff counsel, did you -- were you served a

17 copy of this intervening petition?

18        MR. OLIVERO:  Your Honor, I was out of the

19 office yesterday, but a brief review of my emails

20 seemed to indicate that we, at least I, had not

21 received any.  I don't know if Mr. Feeley did, but

22 I didn't receive a copy.



14

1        MR. FEELEY:  This is John Feeley.  I didn't

2 receive a copy electronically.

3        JUDGE JONES:  You did or you did not?

4        MR. FEELEY:  I did not.

5        JUDGE JONES:  Okay.  Thank you.

6        MR. THOMAS:  Your Honor, if I might, if I

7 might add one thing.

8        JUDGE JONES:  Identify yourself.  Go ahead,

9 identify yourself.

10        MR. THOMAS:  Dale Thomas.  Sorry, your

11 Honor.  We have also been informed this morning --

12 I say "informed" because I have had no chance to

13 see them -- that one copy or form of the

14 intervention allegedly was filed which simply

15 listed all of the track that we are asking

16 condemnation authority for, and then there was a

17 subsequent one that may have cut back from that.

18 We have seen neither, and again, this is part of

19 the problem.  We simply do not know who is actually

20 being represented here.

21        JUDGE JONES:  Part of the problem, part of

22 the problem may be some sort of mix-up on the
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1 service end of this filing that was made on the

2 docket yesterday.  I would note that there is a

3 Schedule A attached to that filing that was made

4 yesterday by Dr. Pliura.

5        What does that Schedule A represent, Dr.

6 Pliura?

7        DR. PLIURA:  Well, that represents the

8 first round of intervenors that we have intervened

9 on behalf of, individuals who will be directly or

10 indirectly affected by what we believe is the

11 proposed eminent domain pipeline.  So that's --

12 those are clients that we actually represent.  We

13 do strongly anticipate -- we are waiting some

14 further paperwork -- there will be many other

15 intervenors, but it is somewhat moot because we

16 intend to represent all of them.

17        So I would anticipate we will have more

18 paperwork being filed, but we're not going to

19 burden the Court with, you know, single filings of

20 intervention on each party, we would just do it in

21 group.  I don't anticipate any delays as we

22 intervene.  If there is objections to additional
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1 information, we can deal with that, but we

2 anticipate strongly there will be other -- we will

3 file additional interventions.

4        JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.  Does staff

5 counsel have anything to suggest, to comment on

6 with respect to what you have heard so far this

7 morning?

8        MR. FEELEY:  This is John Feeley.  Jim, do

9 you want me to go ahead?

10        MR. OLIVERO:  If you wouldn't mind, John,

11 that would be great.

12        MR. FEELEY:  I think counsel for the

13 company just wanted to know which of the

14 intervenors were going to be impacted by the

15 pipeline.  I assume in their petition they identify

16 which tracks they're seeking eminent domain on?

17        MR. REED:  That is correct.

18        MR. FEELEY:  So shouldn't Dr. Pliura be

19 able to identify which people he has signed up so

20 far are on that list?

21        And I think that is just the comment that

22 was made by counsel for the company.
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1        JUDGE JONES:  DR. Pliura, any --

2        DR. PLIURA:  We have no problem in going

3 through the list and identifying who, which

4 individuals that are on the petition for eminent

5 domain are listed, and who will be potentially

6 adversely affected, which I have no problem in

7 that.  We can easily do that.

8        MR. THOMAS:  Dale Thomas.  Just for the

9 record, I assume that by that he will also identify

10 that those individuals are, in fact, represented by

11 him?

12        DR. PLIURA:  Yes.

13        MR. REED:  This is Darryl reed.  I do not

14 want the schedule to be bogged down by the fact

15 that there are some unknowns.  The purpose of the

16 hearing today is to, in fact, set dates whereby

17 certain testimonies will be filed.  To the extent

18 that we do not know who will be filing testimony

19 other than the Commission staff, it certainly

20 impacts what the company is trying to do.  So we do

21 not want some open-ended, well, maybe this person

22 will or that person will.
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1        So that's something that we'd like to at

2 least have the judge take notice of that.  We need

3 to set at least a filing date today for the staff

4 and intervenors to file their testimony.

5        JUDGE JONES:  All right.  I thank the

6 parties for your comments.  At this time we are

7 going to go off the record to provide the parties

8 an opportunity to discuss scheduling to see if you

9 can agree to scheduling, whatever those scheduling

10 elements may involve.

11              (Discussion off the record.)

12        JUDGE JONES:  Back on the record.  Did the

13 parties reach any sort of scheduling agreement or

14 partial scheduling agreement off the record?

15        MR. OLIVERO:  Your Honor, we had a

16 discussion among the parties.

17        JUDGE JONES:  Please identify yourself just

18 for the other people.

19        MR. OLIVERO:  I'm sorry.  This is Jim

20 Olivero on behalf of staff.  The parties had a

21 discussion regarding the scheduling, at least of

22 staff and intervenor direct testimony, and there
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1 really has not been any type of agreement

2 whatsoever.

3        I think -- and Mr. Pliura, you can correct

4 me if I am wrong -- staff suggested a date in

5 October that they would be able to file their

6 direct testimony, and I believe Mr. Pliura wanted

7 approximately six months from today's date.

8        As I understand it, I think the company is

9 comfortable with the date suggested by staff, and

10 they would prefer that it be both staff and

11 intervenor filing contemporaneously rather than

12 having a disjointed schedule of, you know, staff

13 filing, intervenors responding, what have you.

14        JUDGE JONES:  In terms of any of the

15 scheduling in this docket, was there agreement

16 among all of the parties reached on anything at

17 all?

18        MR. OLIVERO:  Well, okay, sorry.  I'm

19 sorry.  This is Jim Olivero again.  It is my

20 understanding that we were just going to for

21 purposes of getting situated in terms of the issues

22 and how long things might take, was just having a
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1 date for staff and intervenor direct testimony to

2 be filed and then a status to be held within a week

3 or ten days after that.  But that was the extent of

4 the schedule going forward, you know, for purposes

5 of today's hearing.

6        MR. THOMAS:  Dale Thomas for the company.

7 We are in agreement with --

8        JUDGE JONES:  Let me ask it this way.

9 Mr. Olivero, it is your understanding that all of

10 the parties were in agreement that the next step in

11 the process would be to set a date for the filing

12 of staff and intervenor testimony, whatever that

13 date may be, or is that not your understanding?

14        MR. OLIVERO:  Well, again -- Mr. Pliura may

15 correct me on this -- I think he mentioned during

16 our discussions that he might want to wait for

17 staff to file their direct testimony and then

18 respond to it, but, you know, I guess, I guess our

19 hope when we were filing everything it would be

20 done on behalf of staff and intervenor at the same

21 time.  I think Mr. Pliura can address that if he

22 has some --
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1        JUDGE JONES:  Yeah, I'm just trying to

2 establish right now whether there is any agreement

3 on anything at all, and in doing so I would ask

4 you, ask the parties not to provide your reasons or

5 your support for whatever your position may be.

6 There will be opportunity for that.  But right now

7 I'm just trying to figure out whether there is

8 anything at all that is actually agreed to as kind

9 of a starting point here.  Perhaps there is not.

10        Do other parties want to speak to that

11 question whether there is actually anything at all

12 that's any step at all agreed to in terms of what

13 need to happen next?

14        DR. PLIURA:  This is Tom Pliura on behalf

15 of the intervenors.  I think in honesty and good

16 faith, everybody, the Commission, the Petitioner

17 and myself, we would like to work with the

18 Commission and your Honor to find a reasonable date

19 for filing our testimony.  That is where we are in

20 agreement on.  We want to do that.

21        I think the deadlines are where we are in

22 disagreement.  I think they suggest October 17th.
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1 I, myself, actually have a two-week trial coming up

2 in September here.

3        JUDGE JONES:  All right.  Now we are

4 getting into your reasons.  I understand that you

5 may have your reasons for not liking whatever the

6 others are proposing and reasons for supporting

7 your own proposal.  I want to stay away from

8 people's arguments.  We will get into back and

9 forth on that.

10        DR. PLIURA:  Yep.

11        JUDGE JONES:  What I'm trying to figure out

12 up front is whether there is agreement in terms of

13 what needs to happen next, what the appropriate

14 next step is, whatever dates may attach to that or

15 whether there is not agreement even on that.

16        MR. REED:  Your Honor, the company has no

17 objection to a proposal that staff and intervenors

18 would file their direct case and we hold a status

19 hearing shortly thereafter to determine what the

20 next steps are going to be.  Whatever date your

21 Honor decides is sufficient will be fine with the

22 company.
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1        JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.  Now, I realize

2 there appears to be disagreement over what such a

3 date would look like.  Let me back up to something

4 that Mr. Olivero mentioned, and that is what, which

5 parties that date would apply to, again, whatever

6 that date may be.  We are speaking in terms of

7 staff and intervenor direct.

8        Mr. Olivero, did you say that there may be

9 something short of agreement with regard to which

10 parties would be making a filing on such a date?

11        MR. OLIVERO:  Well, again, I would defer to

12 Mr. Pliura on this.  When we were having our

13 discussion it was -- we were, we were talking on

14 behalf of staff of a date for both staff and

15 intervenor, and again, Mr. Pliura, correct me if I

16 am wrong, I understood you to say you wanted to

17 wait to see that, and then you would respond to

18 that instead of filing testimony contemporaneously;

19 is that not correct?

20        DR. PLIURA:  You are correct, but as long

21 as we get an opportunity to comment on the

22 Commission's filed testimony, we don't -- I won't
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1 object to a simultaneous filing as long as we are

2 going to have a chance for what I will call, you

3 know, cross on that or a supplemental in response

4 to whatever it is that you file or, you know, the

5 testimony that's filed.

6        JUDGE JONES:  All right.  Let me try this

7 next.  We will see what happens.  Assuming for the

8 moment that there is a partial schedule put into

9 place which would involve filing of a staff and

10 intervenor direct testimony date, I believe that

11 staff and Enbridge had appeared to have a date in

12 mind, and Dr. Pliura had a later date in mind.  So

13 let me pursue that a little bit.

14        As far as the date for a staff and

15 intervenor direct testimony filing, Mr. Olivero,

16 was there a date that you believe to be one that is

17 either to be proposed by or acceptable to staff and

18 Enbridge?

19        MR. OLIVERO:  Yes, your Honor.  This is Jim

20 Oliver on behalf of staff.  We had proposed a date

21 of October 17th for filing direct testimony, and I

22 believe the company had indicated that they were



25

1 acceptable to that date for the filing.

2        JUDGE JONES:  Let's switch over.  We will

3 get back to Mr. Reed in a minute, but let's switch

4 over to Dr. Pliura here.

5        Now, Dr. Pliura, you had a different date

6 or time period in mind; is that right?

7        DR. PLIURA:  Yes, that is right.  My

8 proposal was six months, but quite frankly if we

9 are going to get a chance to submit responses or

10 responses to whatever the Commission's proposal is,

11 I am very willing to come off that six months.  I

12 think less than 60 days is an unrealistic proposal.

13 In my view October 17th is too aggressive, but less

14 than 60 days, I would maybe say November 30th or

15 something like that and then a reasonable time,

16 maybe 45 days, to supply or respond to whatever the

17 parties file.  That would be my nature.

18        JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.  Now, I believe

19 that I heard there was some mention of a possible

20 status hearing after that staff and intervenor

21 filing; is that correct?

22        MR. OLIVERO:  Yes, your Honor.
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1        JUDGE JONES:  All right.  Now, so we have a

2 date here Mr. Olivero identified, purportedly one

3 that was at least acceptable to Enbridge, and then

4 Dr. Pliura put out a date of November the 30th.

5 One of a couple ways here -- so kind of focusing on

6 that approach, you have heard each other off the

7 record and to some degree on the record.

8        Do you want another opportunity, short

9 opportunity among yourselves to pin something down,

10 or do you want to leave it to a ruling to the

11 issue?

12        Do you want a couple minutes among

13 yourselves see if you can nail a specific date down

14 or not?

15        DR. PLIURA:  The intervenor would

16 appreciate two minutes of time to talk to

17 commission and Enbridge attorneys.

18        JUDGE JONES:  I won't require that if there

19 is not sort of agreement for that to happen.

20        Is that acceptable to you?

21        If you can nail something down, if you do,

22 then we will go that direction.
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1        MR. REED:  We have no objection, your

2 Honor.

3        JUDGE JONES:  If you do not, we will figure

4 it out from there, and there will be some sort of

5 ruling required and potentially some argument

6 beyond what's already been presented if necessary.

7 So to provide that opportunity to Counsel, we will

8 hereby go off the record for a short period.

9              (Discussion off the record.)

10        JUDGE JONES:  We are back on the record.

11 Is there -- let the record show that was an

12 off-the-record discussion for the purposes

13 indicated.

14        Turning to the parties, is there, is there

15 any agreement on the date for that filing?

16        DR. PLIURA:  No, there is not.

17        JUDGE JONES:  Was that you, Dr. Pliura?

18        DR. PLIURA:  Yeah.  I said there is no

19 agreement.  We would come off that November 30th to

20 November 15th.

21        MR. THOMAS:  Dale Thomas, your Honor.  May

22 I speak briefly?
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1        JUDGE JONES:  Yes.

2        MR. THOMAS:  I don't want to try and get

3 into reasons a lot, so if I err, let me know.

4        We do agree with the October 17th date put

5 out by staff.  We think that is more than enough

6 time.  We filed this petition in July.

7        JUDGE JONES:  You are getting into reasons

8 obviously, so we will get -- we will have to take

9 some argument on this, and we will do that --

10        MR. THOMAS:  Fair enough.

11        JUDGE JONES:  -- in pretty short order.

12        MR. THOMAS:  Fair enough.

13        JUDGE JONES:  Probably be more efficient to

14 go ahead and hear from counsel on what is wrong

15 with the other side's date.

16        Dr. Pliura, the one date that's been

17 proposed, October 17th, what is the -- what are the

18 reasons for your objections to that date as opposed

19 to your own proposal?

20        DR. PLIURA:  Sure.  Your Honor, I have now

21 a trial scheduled to go to trial September 9th, I

22 believe.  It starts in Champaign County,
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1 anticipated to be up to a two-week trial.  I'm

2 going to try and get it done obviously less than

3 that.  We will have a plethora of individuals after

4 that trial that I am going to need to contact.  I'm

5 a solo practitioner.  Additionally, right now I

6 have a planned absence from the state.  I believe

7 it is October 10th through the 16th, but I would

8 have to look exactly.  There is a seven-day time

9 frame where I'm currently planned to be out.  So

10 that is it in a nutshell.

11        Obviously the other side has had a long

12 time to prepare.  I know they just filed this about

13 a month ago, maybe a month today, July 22nd.  So we

14 filed our intervention.  I don't think it is

15 unreasonable.  I'm willing to come off that

16 November 30th date to November 15th to get it in

17 front of the holidays, but that's my argument.

18        JUDGE JONES:  Thank you, Dr. Pliura.

19        Counsel for Enbridge, what, what is your

20 position in all of that?

21        MR. THOMAS:  Yes, your Honor.  Dale Thomas

22 for Enbridge.
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1        As Dr. Pliura acknowledged, we filed this

2 petition July 22nd.  We were served with data

3 requests from staff which we answered completely on

4 August 8th and August 15th respectively.  We have

5 filed our complete direct testimony in this case on

6 August 20th.  So that we have tried to move forward

7 with some expedition, and the problem we have is

8 this; the Commission invited us to come back, renew

9 our request for eminent domain if we could not get

10 agreement on easements necessary to build the

11 certificated pipeline.

12        We went out in good faith.  We have done

13 that.  We are now up to approximately 80%, but we

14 have commitments to shippers in mid 2015.  It takes

15 about a year to build the pipeline, and then

16 condemnation proceedings in Illinois tend to take

17 from 9 to 12 months.  If one does the math from mid

18 2015, we are back to right where we are.  So we

19 feel there is some need here for expedition.

20        We are preferably agreeable with staff's

21 date.  We think Dr. Pliura should be able to file

22 something on that date as well, then we can have a
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1 status hearing and decide what would be the fairest

2 way to go forward for all parties including Dr.

3 Pliura.  But it seems to us that would be

4 essentially four months after we filed the

5 petition, and that should be sufficient.

6        JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.  Does staff have

7 anything to say about these competing dates?

8        MR. OLIVERO:  Your Honor, this is Jim

9 Olivero on behalf of staff.  No, not really.  I

10 mean, in talking with staff, we thought

11 approximately a three-month period and having

12 already sent out DR's that have been responded to,

13 you know, the October 17th date seemed reasonable

14 on behalf of staff I guess I would say.

15        JUDGE JONES:  Thank you, Mr. Olivero.  Dr.

16 Pliura, did you have anything, anything further to

17 say or argue regarding that?

18        DR. PLIURA:  No other than just the comment

19 is they have had, the Petitioner had quite a long

20 time to get everything prepared, and they have been

21 working on things, I am sure, for many months.

22 Intervenor is at a great disadvantage in that we
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1 have not even looked at any of the responses yet

2 that apparently have been filed, what, two days

3 ago.  So it will take us a little bit of time.  We

4 are committed to push forward quickly, but just

5 less than two months is too aggressive in our

6 opinion.

7        JUDGE JONES:  All right.  Thank you.

8 Anything further from your side of things?

9        MR. REED:  This is Darryl Reed.

10        JUDGE JONES:  Mr. Reed?

11        MR. REED:  Under the Commission rules of

12 practice, an intervening party accepts the record

13 as it is when they intervene.  Therefore, to the

14 extent that argument is made that one has not had

15 an opportunity to review the data request response

16 is simply not the company's fault.  That's all that

17 I have to say.  Thank you.

18        JUDGE JONES:  Dr. Pliura, any further?

19        DR. PLIURA:  No, your Honor.

20        JUDGE JONES:  All right.  Thank you,

21 Counsel, for your arguments and your responses to

22 my questions.
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1        What I'm going to do next is issue a ruling

2 in writing, but it will be issued either today or

3 tomorrow at the latest, and it will, it will

4 specify a date for the filing.

5        Now, one problem where there is not an

6 agreement, we have to rely on a ruling, is not only

7 party control over what that date is but also the

8 status hearing that is to follow that.  But as to

9 accommodation to the parties, even though you have

10 sort of lost the opportunity to pin down a date

11 today because there is not an agreement, there will

12 be a status hearing scheduled after whatever date I

13 specify in that ruling, and that status hearing

14 date is one where at least initially I will give

15 the parties an opportunity to check your calendars

16 and agree on a status hearing date and time to

17 follow, to follow the testimony filing that will be

18 addressed in the ruling.

19        So the ruling will specify a date for the

20 filing.  It will not specify a date for the status

21 hearing in the ruling.  That is as an accommodation

22 to the parties to give you an opportunity to agree
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1 to a date shortly after that as indicated.

2        Any questions about the process?

3        MR. THOMAS:  Dale Thomas for Enbridge.  If

4 I could ask one further thing.  We have been

5 talking here about the filing date for direct

6 testimony.  Your Honor has said he will make a

7 ruling and a status hearing hereafter we will see

8 if we can't all agree on a time that works for

9 everybody.

10        Dr. Pliura has raised a few issues which I

11 believe in talking with staff they would agree --

12 and staff can tell me if they don't -- that sound

13 like purely legal issues, and we would at least

14 like to suggest to the Court that if Dr. Pliura has

15 some overarching legal issues, that those should be

16 raised somewhere between now and the direct

17 testimony so that we can respond to those, and

18 those issues can either, you know, be considered as

19 part of the process going forward or eliminated.

20        JUDGE JONES:  Was this discussed during the

21 off-the-record discussion?

22        MR. OLIVERO:  Your Honor, this is Jim
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1 Olivero.  Somewhat.  I think Mr. Pliura really made

2 some of the legal arguments during our first

3 session when we were on the record, so --

4        JUDGE JONES:  Dr. Pliura, any comment on

5 Mr. Thomas' suggestion?

6        DR. PLIURA:  No, we had planned to file, I

7 guess it would be akin to a motion to dismiss or

8 motion for summary judgment challenging from a

9 legal standpoint this actual filing.  I am happy to

10 do that upon commitment with whatever date is

11 chosen if it is a reasonable date, your Honor.  You

12 know, they're not real complicated, the legal

13 issues, but they are going to have to be addressed

14 on the record.

15        MR. THOMAS:  Your Honor, Dale Thomas again

16 for Enbridge.  If I might, as I recall, one of the

17 issues, well, in effect Dr. Pliura has admitted he

18 is going to challenge whether the filing is proper

19 at all and whether the certificate, I believe is

20 what he said, whether the certificate is still

21 valid.

22        Those really should be filed before October
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1 17 or whatever date that the Court chooses because

2 suppose that the decision is that's right, which I

3 don't believe will be the decision, but assuming it

4 was, it saves the parties going forward an awful

5 lot of work and so forth that shouldn't happen and

6 saves the Commission work.  So I would think those

7 issues should be brought before the date for direct

8 testimony.

9        JUDGE JONES:  Dr. Pliura?

10        DR. PLIURA:  Your Honor, that's probably,

11 probably a wise thought process, and, again, I am

12 happy to work promptly and vigorously on that, but

13 that's a good point.  He brings up a valid point.

14 Probably ought to get it on file ahead of time.

15        JUDGE JONES:  All right.  I'm not totally

16 sure where the parties are with that.  You have had

17 two opportunities off the record to kind of work

18 out some of those things.  We will now go back off.

19 It was left somewhat open ended.  If there is a

20 need for more precision on what that date would be,

21 I think we will not take any more arguments on that

22 today.  Rather we will give the parties a chance to
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1 kind of work that out.  If you do not get that

2 worked out and you feel like that needs further

3 attention, then someone should file a motion of

4 some sort to get that date for that type of, that

5 type of motion from Dr. Pliura pinned down.

6        DR. PLIURA:  Well, I will just commit to

7 have that filed, your Honor.  I can commit to

8 having that filed by October 1st.

9        Is that enough for Enbridge and the

10 Commission to review it?

11        MR. REED:  This is Darryl Reed.  I believe

12 that, excuse me, I will defer and let -- staff

13 appears to be conversing.

14        MR. OLIVERO:  Sorry.

15        MS. BACK:  Did you want to respond?

16 We don't have anything --

17        JUDGE JONES:  Please identify yourself.

18        MS. BACK:  We don't have anything to

19 prepare -- of course.  Amy Back -- for the next

20 deadline, so we would obviously defer to the state

21 as to whether or not the state has sufficient time

22 to do their work.
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1        JUDGE JONES:  There is a motion to be filed

2 by Dr. Pliura potentially, that is the --

3        MR. THOMAS:  Right.

4        MS. BACK:  Correct.  If he files his

5 motion, it perhaps makes your work moot, perhaps.

6        MR. OLIVERO:  Right.  Your Honor, actually

7 the October 1st date, I mean, is fine with staff as

8 long as he gets everything filed by that date.  We

9 still have basically two and a half weeks after

10 that.  I mean, I'm assuming you would be able to

11 rule, we'd be able to respond to any motions that

12 were filed prior to the date.

13        JUDGE JONES:  Well, I would say this.  I

14 mean, if there is a motion filed and there will be

15 some sort of response opportunity provided.  Now,

16 how that will all play out relative to the

17 testimony filing is really a question to answer on

18 today's date.  Dr. Pliura, I believe, has indicated

19 he is committed to a filing date for any such

20 motion by October 1.

21        Is that an acceptable date for Enbridge or

22 not?  If it is not, I'm not going to take more
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1 argument on that today.  If it doesn't work for

2 you, then I will allow the parties among themselves

3 to try to figure out a date.  If that is not

4 successful, then somebody can file a motion to get

5 that, get that addressed.

6        But I will back up.  My question here is

7 that October 1 date, is that acceptable to Enbridge

8 or is it not?

9        MR. REED:  No, we have no objection, your

10 Honor.

11        JUDGE JONES:  Thank you, Mr. Reed.  All

12 right.  Any such motions to be filed by Dr. Pliura

13 will be filed by October -- on or before October

14 the 1st.  I believe that's where that was left,

15 which I will get the calendar quickly.  All right.

16 That is a weekday.  Good.

17        Are there any other points of clarification

18 or correction with regard to that item?

19        MR. REED:  The only one -- this is Darryl

20 Reed.  Only one caveat, your Honor.  We would ask

21 that Enbridge, in fact, be served electronically

22 pursuant to the Commission rules of practice with
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1 whatever filing is made in October.

2        JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.  That will work

3 for you, Dr. Pliura?

4        DR. PLIURA:  Oh, certainly, yes.

5        JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.  Any other points

6 of clarification or correction with respect to that

7 October 1 filing?

8        All right.  Let the record show there is

9 not.  I think that will conclude it, then, for

10 today's purposes.  As indicated, I will not

11 continue this to a date certain for reasons already

12 mentioned.

13        Is there anything else before we conclude

14 this pre-hearing conference today?

15        Let the record show there is not.  Our

16 thanks to the parties for your participation today

17 and also to those in attendance who did not

18 directly participate.  Also our thanks to Mr. Reed,

19 his office for circulating the call-in number that

20 was used.

21          (Hearing concluded at 11:28 a.m.)

22
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